
TOWN OF BEDFORD
April 26, 2016

CONSERVATION COMMISSION
MINUTES

A meeting of the Bedford Conservation Commission was held on Tuesday, April 26, 2016 at the 
Bedford Meeting Room, 10 Meetinghouse Road, Bedford, NH.  Present were:  Beth Evarts 
(Chairwoman), Phil Cote (Planni ng Board Liaison), James Drake,  Sara Thomas, Michelle 
Salvatore, Dave Gambaccini (Alternate), and Karin Elmer (Planner 1)

Chairwoman Evarts called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and introduced members of the 
Commission.  Jonathan Benjamin (Alternate), Dave Gilbert (Town Council Alternate), Jim 
Aguiar (Town Council), Tom Sauser, and Lisa Kammer (Alternate) were absent.

Dredge and Fill Applications:  None

New Business:

 Presentation by  Chris Wells of the Piscataquog Land Cons ervancy Regarding E asement  
Funding for the Florence Tarr Property.

Chris Wells ,  Executive  D irector   of the Piscataquog Land Cons ervancy  in New Boston , was 
present to address this item.  Mr. Wells stated  the  Piscataquog Land Cons ervancy  was founded in 
1970, i t is a private not-for-profit land  tr ust, and  we have two full-time and two part-time 
employees.  The  Piscataquog Land Cons ervancy holds real estate interests in 103 properties, 
totaling about 6,300 acres.  In the last nine months we have added several hundred acres and 
hopefully by the end of the fiscal year we will have added about 500  total  acres in the last year. 
They have had a service area in Bedford for the last 45 years ,  and to my knowledge we have yet 
to do a project in Bedford.  A lot of the conservation easements are donated to the organization, 
where we have been doing land conservation for about 35 years.  Our operating budget is 
approximately $200,0 0 0 and that is funded almost entirely by  contributions from regular people. 
We spent over a year looking at whether we would and should need to expand our service area 
by picking up the Souhegan towns in the watershed.  We amended the articles of incorporation 
and added 11 towns, with a balance now of 23 towns, and those towns hold 28 percent of the 
State’s population.  

Mr. Wells continued the Tarr Trust has been an ongoing issue for Bedford and the Conservation 
Commission for a number of years.  The future of the land covered in the Tarr Trust has been in 
the courts for several years, and the Attorney General’s office has done a couple of RFP's 
looking for a nonprofit like  Piscataquog Land Cons ervancy to take on those properties.  After  



Town Of Bedford
Conservation Commission Minutes – April 26, 2016 2

passing on a couple of the earlier RFP's, we did in the end respond to an RFP last fall.  Out of the 
two nonprofits that applied, the Attorney General preferred the Piscataquog Land Conservancy.

Mr. Wells stated I am here  first  to approach the Town of Bedford  as we are now in the process of 
putting together about $200,000, which we determined is what we would need to have as the 
dowry to go with the property.  I supplied you with the first cut of a draft budget.  We would like 
it if the Town of Bedford could do a contribution to our funding effort in the amount of $68,000, 
and that number could be adjusted up or down a little.  The idea was that 80 percent of the Tarr 
Trust acres are located in Bedford and 20 percent are in Goffstown.   I have not met with the 
Town of Goffstown yet.  They know about the situation and the initial response was positive.   I 
am proposing an 80/20 split of the two towns to kick in to make this a go.  The big chunks of 
land total about 318 acres, and those would come to us in perpetuity, and the smaller ones we are 
hoping to convey out.  The smaller lots are scattered and it doesn’t make sense for us to hold 
onto them.  This is a very unique situation in that the land is already protected and we feel it 
would be hard to go find the money from the usual sources.

Chairwoman Evarts asked do you have a projected date as to when the Conservancy will take 
over the land?  Mr. Wells replied the clock is set by the court.  We are hoping to have the 
conveyances done by the end of the calendar year, but that could be extended if it had to be.  The 
Tarr Trust account is key to this and once we know what the number will be, we will adjust both 
the expense and revenue side of the ledger.   Chairwoman Evarts asked will you be applying for 
grants and pursue other private funding?  Mr. Wells replied  yes; a n effort to seek private 
contributions in town that might defray what the Town of Bedford would do.  Ms. Salvatore 
asked do you have any active fund raising going on?  Mr. Wells replied yes; in any given year 
we are doing one or two fund raising projects, seeking grants from private foundations, and 
individual fund raising, which is our usual process.  Ms. Salvatore stated I did a quick calculation 
and at 80 percent we are looking at $163,000.  I am not sure of the process for us requesting 
fund s  or if there is any limitation.  Mr. Wells stated once we get the certainty on the Tarr Trust 
amount, we will let you know and any amount could go up or down.

Chairwoman Evarts asked for comments or questions from the audience.  There were none.

Mr. Drake asked who owns the land in Bedford?  Mr. Wells replied the Town of Bedford  does . 
Mr. Drake asked have you thought about what infrastructure will be needed to open this up?  Mr. 
Wells replied when Florence Tarr created the trust she made sure that there would be no hunting 
or fishing, no free-running dogs, and no toxic chemicals  on the property .  While this has been 
ongoing in the courts there have been other things added to those.   This whole thing is about 
finding a long-term steward to stay in keeping with what Florence Tarr wanted.  The properties 
will be freshly posted against hunting and fishing, what is agreed to on do gs, there has been a lot 
of back  and forth about bicycles and horses, so some final decisions have not  yet  been made.  In 
the final agreement if the  Piscataquog Land Cons ervancy ends up with the property, we will 
hopefully have discretion to officially allow bikes and horses ,  but maybe just on designated trails 
, and we reserve the right to close those uses.

Ms. Salvatore asked could those small parcels be donated to the Town?  Ms. Elmer stated the 
Town doesn’t want them either.  Mr. Drake asked could it be a problem if those small parcels are 



Town Of Bedford
Conservation Commission Minutes – April 26, 2016 3

not monitored?   Ms. Elmer responded those would have to be monitored as part of the Tarr 
Trust.  Mr. Wells stated our duty of care is very high; we have made  a  c ommitment  to manage 
the land, and the Tarr Trust is very specific in the way the land is managed.  

Mr. Drake asked how long will it take before the court decision is finalized?   Ms. Elmer stated at 
this point we have to step back and let this play out, and many other items can be discussed and 
worked out after they own the property.  Mr. Wells stated one of the things we said we would do 
once the land is conveyed, is to do a field inventory of what is out there, figure out where all the 
trails are, and get all of that figured out before we start investing money into the infrastructure.

Ms. Hebert asked I was wondering if you have considered adding a signage line item in the 
budget?  Mr. Wells replied that is what the contingency line in the budget is for.

Ms. Elmer stated we had talked about the possibility of working with the Conservation 
Commission on a master plan for the property, so we could work with you in partnership of 
being good stewards and  hopefully  have a seat at the table.  Mr. Wells stated our model is that 
we are very dependent on volunteer land stewards.  We want to have local people who are our 
eyes and ears that are out there regularly,  with  ongoing monitoring, and having a group of people 
would be a huge help.

Mr. Wells stated I will update the Commission once I have more information, which will 
probably be in a couple of months.  

 Eagle Scout Eric Juliano, Approval of His Eagle Scout Project at Muller Park:

Eagle Scout Eric Juliano stated I am from Bedford Boy Scout Troop 5.  My proposed Eagle 
Scout project is to do improvements at Muller Park.  The scope of work would be to clear out 
small trees and brush on the trails, map the trails, post  a  trail map to the kiosk, install trail 
markers on trees, create a 2-foot X 6-foot sign for the park that will be posted on two timber 
posts and may be set in concrete, similar to the one that was recently installed at the waterfowl 
sanctuary , which I would like to post on the public road .  Photos of existing conditions of the 
trails were posted and reviewed.  There are a couple of larger fallen trees that I may not be able 
to move, and in that case I would reroute the trail around those trees.  Ms. Elmer stated give me a 
call as I may be able to help with the removal of those larger trees.  Eagle Scout Juliano stated 
also, I will remove the broken picnic table and leave the other one there.  M y plan is to leave the 
kiosk as it is ,  and that is where I will post the map.   My project team will include friends, family 
and Troop 5 fellow scouts.  My proposed schedule is to start the project after school ends in 
June, and hope to have the project completed at the beginning of school in the fall or maybe 
earlier than that.  

Mr. Drake asked have you walked the trails?  Eagle Scout Juliano replied yes.  We could only 
find two  main  trails, as indicated on the aerial photo, and those  end at private properties.  My 
plan is to block the trails where they enter the private properties.  Mr. Drake asked is either of the 
trails going through wet areas?  Eagle Scout Juliano replied no.  The trail skirts along the edge of 
the wetland but not into it.



Town Of Bedford
Conservation Commission Minutes – April 26, 2016 4

Chairwoman Evarts stated be sure to follow any guidelines required to setting a sign near a 
public road.  If the decision is made to use concrete for installing the sign, please be sure to let us 
know.  I would like you to consider blazing the trails as well.  If you co uld supply us with any 
material about the project, we would like to post it to the Conservation Commission website.

MOTION by Mr. Drake that the Conservation Commission approve the Eagle 
Scout project for Muller Park as presented by Eagle Scout Eric Juliano.  Ms. 
Salvatore duly seconded the motion.  Vote taken – all in favor.  Motion carried.

Chairwoman’s Update:  None

Review New Round of RTP Grant:

Ms. Elmer stated my personal feeling is you should see if we get the Heritage Trail Grant work 
done and get traction on the Pulpit Rock Grant work before we apply for another grant. 
Chairwoman Evarts stated I share that sentiment.  We should make sure we concentrate on the 
grants we have received and make sure we do a good job with those before applying for another 
one.  Ms. Salvatore agreed.  Mr. Drake stated the deadline for submitting the grant is June 3, 
2016.  If we have a good project, we should apply, even if we don’t get the money until next 
year.  Chairwoman Evarts stated I don’t think we are ready to apply for another grant at this 
time.  

Old Business:

 Update on Sebbins Pond Lot Abutter Encroachments

Ms. Elmer stated I sent an email to the Bedford Land Trust today, and they replied that they have 
not had a chance to inspect the work that may have been done by the abutter .  They will let me 
know when they do and then let me know what we have to do.

 Update on Pulpit Rock Grant Work

Mr. Drake stated I talked to the archeological survey company, and because our mapping of the 
trail is not great, they were guessing where the new trail will go.  They did find areas of potential 
archaeological sensitivity wherever there is water crossing and there could be the potential for 
Native American and European ancestry.   They located a loading dock of a road so they are 
surmising that is where the mill used to be ,  and if it has historical significance ,  the trail may have 
to go around it.  If the rock wall has historical significance ,  we might have to do test pits to look 
for artifacts.    If the mill is a historical site, ma ybe we could put up a sign indicating that.  Ms. 
Elmer stated the test pit work  would be within the cost estimates.  Mr. Drake stated we really 
need to figure out where the trail will go.  Ms. Elmer stated maybe you could stake and flag 



Town Of Bedford
Conservation Commission Minutes – April 26, 2016 5

where you think the trail may go and the archeological survey company can see if that is okay. 
Mr. Drake stated the work continues to move forward.

 Update on Heritage Trail Grant Work

Ms. Salvatore stated we met with our bridge expert, reviewed bridge designs and came up with a 
couple of concepts.  We also had an environmental specialist stake and flag the wetlands.  The 
next step is to hold another meeting to see if we think there could be wetlands impact with the 
bridge design, which may trigger the need for a dredge and fill permit.  We are hoping by the 
next meeting to have a bridge design agreed upon based on the wetland assessment.  Ms. Elmer 
stated once the design of the bridge is drawn, it will go to the Town Manager for his signature. 
Ms. Salvatore stated the work continues to move forward.

 Update on the McQuesten Brook Restoration Plan

Ms. Elmer stated you have probably noticed the detours on South River Road as construction has 
begun on the bridge on Eastman Avenue.  Once that bridge is done they will move over to the 
next one, then daylight the next culvert, and hopefully by the summer we will have a whole new 
ecosystem out there.

 Update on Survey of Joppa Hill

Ms. Elmer stated I reviewed all the documents from this the file on this ,  and it looks like the way 
we left it in 2012 is that the Bedford Land Trust would hire a surveyor and the Conservation 
Commission would pay the invoice.  It looks as though they never had the survey done, but they 
are checking to see if it did get done.  If not, they have asked if we would have to reallocate the 
funds again because it is a new fiscal year.  I will check with the Town Manager and bring you 
up-to-date at the May meeting.

 Update on Volunteer Release of Liability

Ms. Elmer distributed the response from the Town Attorney.  I got permission from the Town 
Manager to contact the Town Attorney, and his response is that you are covered.  There are 
RSA’s that list the laws that say you are covered.

Attachments:

 Basic Trail Maintenance Training for Volunteers

Ms. Elmer stated this event is scheduled for Sunday, June 11, 2016.



Town Of Bedford
Conservation Commission Minutes – April 26, 2016 6

 Pulpit Rock Nature Walk Hosted by Jo Hendry of the Bedford Land Trust

Chairwoman Evarts stated this walk is being held on Saturday, May 14, 2016 from 9:00 AM to 
12:00 PM.  Everyone is invited to attend.

 Pulpit Rock Conservation Area Master Plan

Ms. Elmer distributed the Pulpit Rock Conservation Area Master Plan for the members’ records.

Additional Comments:  None

Approval of Minutes:

 March 22, 2016

MOTION by Mr. Cote  to  approve the minutes of the  March 22 , 2016  Conservation 
Commission  meeting as written.   Mr. Drake  duly s econded the motion.  Vote taken – 
all in favor.  Motion carried.

Non-public Session:  None

Adjournment:

MOTION by  Ms. Salvatore  to adjourn at  8:20  PM.  Mr. Drake  duly seconded the 
motion.  Vote taken - all in favor.  Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted by
Valerie J. Emmons


	OLE_LINK2

